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Independent auditors’ report

Grant Thornton Afghanistan
House # 116, Street # 12
Quall e Fatehullah, Kabul,

To the Shareholders of Afghanistan oy O

M: +93 789 314 616,
International Bank i ganthomion o
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Afghanistan International Bank (the
Bank), which comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2020,
and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Bank as of December 31, 2020, and its financial performance
and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB), the Law of Banking in Afghanistan and other laws and regulations issued by
Da Afghanistan Bank.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing
(ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the .Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board
of Accountants’ Code of Ethics of Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in
Afghanistan, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the IESBA code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance

for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial

statements in accordance with IFRSs issued by the International Accounting P
Standards Board (IASB), the requirements of the Law of Banking in Afghanistan and \l\\
other laws and regulations issued by Da Afghanistan Bank, and for such internal

control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Chartered Acc ts and M: ment C:
Member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

® Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal
control.

® Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures Y
are inadequate, modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

Chartered Accountants and Management Consultants
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*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

*  We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

(770 n 7L Wﬂ /‘,.'710 #YZ’] é;f -aGr;;\:: \

Grant Thornton Afghanistan G |

Chartered Accountants /& }
v/

Engagement Partner: Saqib Rehman Qureshi - FCA 2,

Location: Kabul, Afghanistan /“r ‘-7h?i‘:(>
Date: ab”' MNay- NoAY

Chartered Accountants and Management Consultants
Member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd



AFGHANISTAN lﬁ.TERNATIONAL BANK
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

31 December, 2020 31 December, 2018

Note AFN '000' AFN '000°
ASSETS
Cash and balances with Da Afghanistan Bank 5 12.508.824 13.859,017
Balances with other banks & 11,958.104 7.237,771
Placements - net 7 17.463.070 15.085.047
Investments - net 8 17,066,969 18,915,749
Loan and advances to customers - net 9 2,670,139 3,417,810
Receivables from financial instiiutions 10 266,315 502618
Operating fixed assets " 3.583.301 3,450 342
Intangible assets 12 364,323 426 328
Deferred tax assets 13 87,543 -
Other assets 14 636,036 837 820
Total assets 66,604,716 63,732,502
LIABILITIES
Customers' deposits 15 | 62.211.331 58,843 106)
Deposits from bank 16 | i 500 oco]
Deferred income | 26.192 32

Lease lizbilities 17 465 641 265 040
Deferred tax liabilities 13 . 34,299 |
Other liabilities 18 155,857 333.581|
Total liabilities 62,863,021 60,053,338
EQUITY

Share capital 19 1.465,071 1.465 071
Capital reserves 20 306.31¢ 290.813
Retained earnings 1827.914 1.859 291 |
Ravaluation surplus/ (loss) on debt instruments at FVOCI 142,391 63,989
Total equity 3,741,695 3,679,164
Total liabilities and equity 66,604,716 63,732,602
Contingencies and commitments 21

The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements

Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer




AFGHANISTAN INTERNATIONAL BANK
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

31 December, 31 December,
2020 2018
Note AFN '000' AFN "000'
Interest income 22 1,031,898 1.383.239
Interest expense 23 {19,402) (36,968
Net interest income 1,012,497 1,346,271
Fee and commission income 24 957,168 1.081,873
Fee and commission expense 25 (7,508) (16,277)
Net fee and commission income 989,660 1,086,596
Income from dealing in foreign currencies 319,774 236.756
2,321,930 2,649,623
Other income 26 331,151 46,414
(Loss) / gain on sale of securities 168,827 105,221
Credit losses reversal / (expense) 27 (620,221) (120,882)
Finance cost on lease fiability (9,479} (5.351)
General and administrative expenses 28 (2,023,522} (2.000,948)
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 168,686 674,077
Taxation 29 141,443 (65,909)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 310,129 608,168
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items that may be classified to profit or loss subsequently
Surplus/ (Deficit) on debt instruments at FVOCI 98003 | | 188,547
Related deferred tax (19.601) (37.709)!
Other comprehensive loss. net of tax 76402 150.838
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 388,531 759,006
Earnings per share (in AFN) 10.34 2027

The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements,

/]

Chairman hief Executive Officer Chief Financial Ot‘f'icar




AFGHANISTAN INTERNATIONAL BANK

AFGHANISTAN INTERNATIONAL BANK
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
As at 31 December, 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before Income Tax
Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Amortization

Finance cost on lease liability

Exchange (gain)/ loss

Credit losses (reversal) / expense

Property and equipment written-off

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Receivable from financial institutions
Required reserve maintained with DAB
Cash margin held with other banks
Loans and advances to customers - net
Other assets
Deferred income on commercial letter
of credit and guarantees
Customers’ deposits
Deposits from banks
Other liabilities

Income tax paid
Net cash flow (used in)/ from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital work-in-progress
Acquisition of operating fixed assets
Acquisition of intangible assets
Placements (with maturity more than three months)
Investments

Net cash flow from/ (used in) investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Lease liability repaid
Finance cost paid
Diwvidend paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

31 December, 31 December,
2020 2019
Note AFN '000' AFN '000'
168,686 674.077
112 246.586 265 633
2 87.201 78 118
17 9479 5.351
4 (4,434, =
27 620.221 120,882
20,562 1,708
1,148,300 1,145,770
236.303 (142 498)
(141.696) 462,748
(26,542) 6.743
75.411 (674,188)
201,457 (248,891)
(8.679) (21,315)
3,368,225 (8,540,842)
{500.000) 500,000
(177.724) (292.874)
4,175,056 (7,805,447)
19,601 (6.258)
4,194,656 (7,811,705)
(123.997) (429.370)
(6.291) (715)
- (9,255)
(4,975.537) 3,115,176
1,823,420 (293,373)
(3,182,405) 2,382,463
(86.070) {60 769)
(9.479) {8.223)
(326,000) (665.000)
(421,548) {733,992)
580,703 (6.163,234)
28,374,417 34,537 651
31 28,965,120 28,374,417

The annexed notes 1 1o 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.

av/x

Chairman

Clief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer




Balance as at 01 January 2019

Total comprehensive income
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income. net of tax
Debt instruments at FVOC!
Net change in fair value
Related tax

Total comprehensive income
Transferred to capilal raserve

Transactions with owners of the bank
Dividend paid

Balance as at 31 December 2019

Balance as at 01 January 2020

Total comprehensive income

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income. net of tax

Fair value reserve (debt instruments at FVOC!
Net change in fair value
Related tax

Total comprehensive income

Transferred 10 capital reserve

Transactions with owners of the bank
Dividend paid

Bal asat31D ber 2020

AFGHANISTAN INTERNATIONAL BANK
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

AFGHANISTAN INTERNATIONAL BANK

Revaluation
surplus/ (loss} Retained
Share capital pinge 0y Capital reserves eamings Total
instruments at
AFN '000"
1.465.071 186 B48) 260 405 1 846 531 3585 158
E F % 508.168 j 508 168 |
| | i
| ] : E
| 188 547 || i ! 188 547
i (37 709)| | { £37 708
A ] L
- 160,838 - 608,168 759,006
30.408 (30.408)
(665.000) {665,000}
1.465{271 63,988 290,813 1.559&91 3._57’.15‘
Revaluation
surplus/ {loss)
Share capital on debt Capital reserve Ruthined Total
earnings
instruments at
FvoCi
AFN '000°
1 485.071 63,289 290 813 1,859,291 3679 164
[ [ 310.129 { 310 129 |
{ )
| | :
| 98.003 || i 58 €03
[ {19.6C1) B | 1% 807
- 78,402 310,129 388.531
15,506 (15,506)
- - - (326,000) {328.000)
1,465,071 142,391 306,319 1,827,914 3,741,695

The annexed notes ' to 36 form an integral part of these financial staterments

Chairman

xecutive Officer

Chiefl Financial Officer




AFGHANISTAN INTERNATIONAL BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2020

1. Status and nature of business

Afghanistan International Bank (the Bank) was registered with Afghan Investment Support Agency
(AISA) on 27 December 2003 and received formal commercial banking license on 22 March 2004 from
Da Afghanistan Bank (DAB), the central bank of Afghanistan, to operate nationwide. The Bank
obtained Islamic banking license from DAB via letter no. 1863/1890 dated 21 July 2014.

The Bank initially was incorporated as a limited liability company and domiciled in Afghanistan,
however, on the basis that the bank capital is divided into shares the status of the bank is changed
from limited liability to Corporation under the Corporations and Limited Liability Companies Law,
this status is effective from 04 May 2016. The principal business place of the Bank is at AIB Head
Office, Airport Road, Kabul, Afghanistan.

The Bank has been operating as one of the leading commercial banking service providers in
Afghanistan. The Bank has 35 branches and 2 cash outlets (2019: 35 branches and 2 cash outlets) in
operation.

2. Basis of preparation and measurement

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standard Board, the Law of Banking in
Afghanistan and other laws and regulations issued by Da Afghanistan Bank. Whenever the
requirement of the Law of Banking in Afghanistan differs with the requirements of the IFRS, the
requirement of the Law of Banking in Afghanistan and other laws and regulations issued by Da
Afghanistan Bank takes precedence.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except that certain
investments, derivative financial instruments and forward foreign exchange contracts are stated at fair
value.

These financial statements comprise statement of financial position, statement of comprehensive
income as a single statement, statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows and the
accompanying notes.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying
the Bank’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or

areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in note
4.

2.1 The Bank has adopted the following accounting standards and the amendments and
interpretation of IFRSs which became effective for the current year:

Standard or Interpretation

- IFRS 16, "Leases"

- IFRIC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment

- Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures (amendments to TAS 28)

- Amendments to IFRS 9: Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

- Amendments to IAS 19: Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle



AFGHANISTAN INTERNATIONAL BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2020

IFRS 3 Business combination - previously held interest in a joint operation

IFRS 11 Joint Agreements- previously held interest in a joint operation

IAS 12 Income Taxes- Income tax consequences on payments on financial instruments
classified as equity

TAS 23 Borrowing cost - Borrowing cost eligible for capitalization

The above standards and interpretations did not have a material impact on the financial
statements except for the IFRS 16 Leases for which the impact is discussed as below:

2.2 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting
standards that are not vet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved
accounting standards would be effective from the dates mentioned there against:

Standard or Interpretation Effective date
(annual periods
beginning)

- IFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investment
in Associates and Joint Ventures - Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an

Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendment) Not yet finalized
IFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts 1 January 2021
IAS 1/ IAS 8 - Definition of Material (Amendments) 1 January 2020
Definition of business - Amendment to IFRS 3 1 January 2020
The Conceptual Framework of Financial Reporting 1 January 2020

The above standards, amendments and interpretations are not expected to have any material

impact on the Bank's financial statements in the period of initial application.

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

The accounting policies adopted in preparation of this financial statements are consistent with those
followed in the preparation of the annual financial statements of the Bank for the year ended 31
December 2018 other than as disclosed in note 3.1 below:

3.1 Adoption of IFRS 16 Leases

In these financial statements, the Bank has applied IFRS 9, effective for annual periods beginning
onor after 1 January 2019, for the first time.

3.1.1 IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ replaces IAS 17 ‘Leases’ along with three Interpretations (IFRIC 4
‘Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease’, SIC 15 ‘Operating Leases-
Incentives’ and SIC 27 ‘Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form
of a Lease’). The adoption of this new Standard has resulted in recognition of a right-of-use

asset and related lease liability in connection with all former operating leases except for those




AFGHANISTAN INTERNATIONAL BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2020

3.1.2

identified as low-value or having a remaining lease term of less than 12 months from the
date of initial application.

The new Standard has been applied using the modified retrospective approach. There has
been no impact on the opening equity upon adoption of IFRS 16. The comparative
information for 2018 is reported under IAS 17 and is not comparable to the information
presented for 2019. Right-of-use asset amounting to AFN 329,926 thousand has been
recognized along with lease liability of AFN 317,856 thousand with remaining impact

recognized in reversal of prepaid rent expense as of the date of adoption.

For contracts in place at the date of initial application, the Bank has elected to apply the
definition of a lease from IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 and has not applied IFRS 16 to arrangements
that were previously not identified as lease under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4. The Bank has clected
not to include inital direct costs in the measurement of the right-of-use asset for operating
leases in existence at the date of initial application of IFRS 16, being 1 January 2019. At
this date, the Bank has also elected to measure the right-of-use assets at an amount equal
to the lease liability adjusted for prepaid/ accrued lease payments that existed at the date of
transition.

Instead of performing an impairment review on the right-of-use assets at the date of initial
application, the Bank has relied on its historic assessment as to whether leases were onerous
immediately before the date of initial application of IFRS 16. On transition, for leases
previously accounted for as operating leases with a remaining lease term of less than 12
months and for leases of low-value assets the Bank has applied the optional exemptions to
not recognize right-of- use assets but to account for the lease expense on a straight-line basis
over the remaining lease term. The Bank did not had any finance lease. On transition to
IFRS 16 the weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities
recognized under IFRS 16 was 1.9% per annum. The Bank has benefited from the use of
hindsight for determining the lease term when considering options to extend and terminate
leases.

Following accounting policy change has been adopted by the Bank pursuant to IFRS 16:
Leased assets

The Bank as a Lessee

For any new contracts entered into on or after 1 January 2019, the Bank considers whether
a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that
conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for
consideration’. To apply this definition, the Bank assesses whether the contract meets three

key evaluations which are whether:

a) The contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the
contract or implicitly specified by being identified at the time the assetis made available
to the Bank;

b) The Bank has the right to obtain substantially all of the cconomic benefits from use of
the identified asset throughout the period of use, considering its rights within the defined

scope of the contract; and



AFGHANISTAN INTERNATIONAL BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2020

¢) The Bank has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period of
use. The Ban assess whether it has the right to direct ‘how and for what purpose’ the
asset is used throughout the period of use.

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee

At lease commencement date, the Bank recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on
the balance sheet. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial
measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Bank, an estimate
of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the lease, and any lease payments

made in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any incentives received).

The Bank depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or
the end of the lease term. The Bank also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when
such indicators exist. At the commencement date, the Bank measures the lease liability at
the present value of the lease payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily available or the Bank’s incremental borrowing

rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are made up of fixed
payments (including in substance fixed), variable payments based on an index or rate,
amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee and payments arising from

options reasonably certain to be exercised.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and
increased for interest. It is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there
are changes in in-substance fixed payments. When the lease liability is remeasured, the
corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or profit and loss if the right-
of-use asset is already reduced ro zero. The Bank has elected to account for short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets using the practical expedients. Instead of recognizing a right-
of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in relation to these are recognized as an expense

in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

On the statement of financial position, right-of-use assets have been included in property
and equipment within operating fixed assets and lease liabilities have been disclosed on the

face of the statement of financial position.

Exctension options for leases

When the Bank has the option to extend a lease, management uses its judgement to
determine whether or not an option would be reasonably certain to be exercised.
Management considers all facts and circumstances including their past practice and any cost
that will be incurred to change the asset if an option to extend is not taken, to help them

determine the lease term.

3.2 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with



AFGHANISTAN INTERNATIONAL BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2020

less than three months maturity including cash in hand and at ATM, unrestricted balances with
the DAB, balances with banks and placements.

3.3 Financial instruments

3.3.1 Financial instruments — initial recognition

33.1.1

3.31.2

3.3.1.3

3.3.1.4

Date of recognition

Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of loans and advances to customers
and balances due to customers, are initially recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date
that the Bank begomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. This
includes regular way trades: purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in
the market place. Loans and advances to customers are recognized when funds are
transferred to the customers’ accounts. The Bank recognize balances due to
customers when funds are transferred to the Bank.

Initial measurement of financial instruments

The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their
contractual terms and the business model for managing the instruments. Financial
instruments are initially measured at their fair value, except in the case of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at FVPL, transaction costs are added to, or
subtracted from, this amount. Trade receivables are measured at the transaction
price. When the fair value of financial instruments at initial recognition differs from
the transaction price, the Bank accounts for the Day 1 profit or loss, as described
below:

Day 1 profit or loss

When the transaction price of the instrument differs from the fair value at origination
and the fair value is based on a valuation technique using only inputs observable in
market transactions, the Bank recognizes the difference between the transaction
price and fair value in net trading income. In those cases where fair value is based
on models forwhich some of the inputs are not observable, the difference between
the transaction price and the fair value is deferred and is only recognized in profit or
loss when the inputs become observable, or when the instrument is derecognized.

Measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities

The Bank classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for
managing the assets and the asset’s contractual terms, measured at either:

» Amortized cost, as explained in note 3.3.2.1
« FVOCI, as explained in notes 3.3.2.3 and 3.3.2.4
e« FVPL

The Bank classifies and measures its trading portfolio at FVPL as explained in Notes
3.3.2.2. The Bank may designate financial instruments at FVPL, if so doing
eliminates or significantly reduces measurement or recognition inconsistencies, as
explained in Note 3.3.2.6.

Financial liabilities, other than loan commitments and financial guarantees, are
measured at amortized cost or at FVPL when they are held for trading and derivative
instruments or the fair value designation is applied, as explained in Note 3.3.2.6.




AFGHANISTAN INTERNATIONAL BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2020

3.3.2 Financial assets and liabilities

3.3.2.1 Due from banks, Loans and advances to Customers, Financial
investments at amortized cost

The Bank measures Due from banks, L.oans and advances to customers and other
financial investments at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

o The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows.

o The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal
amount outstanding,

The dertails of these conditions are outlined below:
Business model assessment

T'he Bank determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages
g
groups of financial assets to achieve its business objectve.

The Bank's business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis,
but at a higher level of aggregated portfolios and is based on observable factors such
as:

« How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held
within that business model are evaluated and reported to the entity's key
management personnel.

e The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial
assets held within that business model) and, in particular, the way those risks
are managed.

» How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the
compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed or on the
contractual cash flows collected).

o The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects
of the Bank’s assessment.




AFGHANISTAN INTERNATIONAL BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2020

3.3.2.2

33253

The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without
taking 'worst case' or 'stress case’ scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial
recognition are realized in a way that is different from the Bank's original
expectations, the Bank does not change the classification of the remaining financial
assets held in that business model, but incorporates such information when assessing
newly originated or newly purchased financial assets going forward.

The SPPI test

Second step of its classification process the Bank assesses the contractual terms of
financial to identify whether they meet the SPPT test.

“Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset
at initial recognition and may change over the life of the financial asset (for example,
if there are repayments of principal or amortization of the premium/discount).

The most significant elements of interest within a lending arrangement are typically
the consideration for the time value of money and credit risk. To make the SPPI
assessment, the Bank applies judgment and considers relevant factors such as the
currency in which the financial asset is denominated, and the period for which the
interest rate is set.

In contrast, contractual terms that introduce a more than minimum exposure to risks
or volatility in the contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic lending
arrangement do not give rise to contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the amount outstanding. In such cases, the financial asset is
required to be measured at FVPL.

Financial assets or financial liabilities held for trading

The Bank classifies financial assets or financial liabilities as held for trading when
they have been purchased or issued primarily for short-term profit making through
trading activities or form part of a portfolio of financial instruments that are
managed together, for which there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-term
profit taking. Held-for-trading assets and liabilities are recorded and measured in the
statement of financial position at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognized in
net trading income. Interest and dividend income or expense is recorded in net trading
income according to the terms of the contract, or when the right to payment has been
established.

Included in this classification are debt securities, equities, short positions and
customer loans that have been acquired principally for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term.

Debt instruments at FVOCI

The Bank classifies debt instruments measured at FVOCI when both of the
following conditions are met:

e The instrument is held within a business model, the objective of which is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets

e The contractual terms of the financial asset meet the SPPI test

FVOCI debt instruments are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
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3.3.24

33.25

3.3.2.6

losses arising due to changes in fair value recognized in OCI. Interest income and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss in the same manner
as for financial assets measured at amortized cost as explained in note. The ECL
calculation for Debt instruments at FVOCI is explained in Note 33.2.3. Where the
Bank holds more than one investment in the same security, they are deemed to be
disposed of on a first—in first— out basis. On de recognition, cumulative gains or
losses previously recognized in OCI are reclassified from OCI to profit or loss.

Equity instruments at FVOCI

Upon initial recognition, the Bank occasionally elects to classify irrevocably some of
its equity investments as equity instruments at FVOCI when they meet the definition
of definition of Equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are
not held for trading. Such classification is determined on an instrument-by-
instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these equity instruments are never recycled to profit. Dividends
are recognized in profit or loss as other operating income when the right of the
payment has been established, except when the Bank benefits from such proceeds as
a recovery of part of the cost of the instrument, in which case, such gains are
recorded in OCIL. Equity instruments at FVOCI are not subject to an impairment
assessment.

Debt issued and other borrowed funds

After initial measurement, debt issued and other borrowed funds are subsequently
measured at amortized cost. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on issue funds, and costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate (EIR). A compound financial instrument which contains both
a liability and an equity component is separated at the issue date.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit orloss

Financial assets and financial liabilities in this category are those that are not held for
trading and have been either designated by management upon initial recognition or
are mandatorily required to be measured at fair value under IFRS 9. Management
only designates an instrument at FVPL upon initial recognition when one of the
following criteria are met. Such designation is determined on an instrument-by-
instrument basis:

o The designation eliminates, or significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatment
that would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or
recognizing gains or losses on them on a different basis; Or

¢ The liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities, which are managed and
their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management or investment strategy; Or

e The liabilities containing one or more embedded derivatives, unless they do
not significantly modify the cash flows that would otherwise be required by
the contract, or it is clear with little or no analysis when a similar instrument is
first considered that separation of the embedded derivative(s) is prohibited

Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVPL are recorded in the statement of
financial positionat fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded in profitand loss with
the exception of movements in fair value of liabilities designated at FVPL due to
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changes in the Bank’s own credit risk. Such changes in fair value are recorded in the
Own credit reserve through OCI and do not get recycled to the profit or loss. Interest
earned or incurred on instruments designated at FVPL is accrued in interest income
or interest expense, respectvely, using the EIR, taking into account any discount/
premium and qualifying transaction costs being an integral part of instrument.
Interest earned on assets mandatorily required to be measured at FVPL is recorded
using contractual interest rate as explained in Note 2.1.2. Dividend income from
equity instruments measured at FVPL is recorded in profit or loss as other operating
income when the right to the payment has been established.

3.3.3 Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Bank does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart
from the exceptional circumstances in which the Bank acquires, disposes of, or terminates
a business line. Financial liabilities are never reclassified. The Bank did not reclassify any of its
financial assets or liabilities in 2019,

3.3.4 Impairment of financial assets
3.3.4.1 Overview of the ECL principles

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the
asset (the lifetime expected credit loss or LTECL), unless there has been no
significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which case, the allowance is
based on the 12 months’ expected credit loss (12mECL) as outlined in Note 3.3.4.2).
The Bank’s policies for determining if there has been a significant increase in credit
risk are set out in Note 3.3.5.

The 12mECL is the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from
default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after
the reporting date.

Both LTECLs and 12mECLs are calculated on either an individual basis or a
collective basis depending on the nature of the underlying portfolio of financial
instruments.

The Bank has established a policy to perform an assessment at the end of each
reporting period of whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, by considering the change in the risk of default
occurring over the remaining life of the financial instrument. This is further
explained in note 33.2.2

Based on the above process, the Bank groups its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2,Stage 3
and POCI, as described below:

o Stage 1: When loans are first recognized, the Bank recognizes an allowance based
on 12mECLs.Stage 1 loans also include facilities where the credit risk has
improvedand the loan has been reclassified from Stage 2.

o Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the Bank records an allowance for the LTECLs. Stage 2 loans also
include facilities, where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been
reclassified from Stage 3.

» Stage 3: Loans considered credit-impaired (as noted below). The bank records
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an allowance for the LTECLs.

e POCI: Purchased or originated credit impaired (POCI) assets are financial assets
that are credit impaired on initial recognidon. POCI assets are recorded at fair
value at original recognition and interest income is subsequently recognized based
on a credit- adjusted EIR. ECLs are only recognized or released to the extent
that there is a subsequent change in the expected credit losses.

For financial assets for which the Bank has no reasonable expectations of recovering
either the entire outstanding amount, or a proportion thereof, the gross carrying

amount of the financial asset is reduced. This is considered a (partial) de recognition
of the financial asset.

3.3.4.2 The calculation of ECLs

The Bank calculates ECLs based on a four probability-weighted scenarios to measure
the expected cash shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the EIR. A cash
shortfall is the difference between the cash flows that are due to an entity in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the entity expects to receive.

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are,
as follows:

:PD  The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over
a given time horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over
the assessed period, if the facility has not been previously de recognized
and is still in the portfolio. The concept of PDs is further explained in
note 33.2.2.

‘EAD The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default
date, taking into account expected changes in the exposure after the
reporting date, including repayments of principal and interest, whether
scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed
facilities, and accrued interest from missed payments. The EAD is further

.LLGD The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case
where a default occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would
expect to receive, including from the realization of any collateral. It is
usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD. The LGD is further
explained in note 33.2.2.

When estimating the ECLs, the Bank considers three scenarios (a base case, an
upside, downside (‘average base’)). When relevant, the assessment of multiple
scenarios also incorporates how defaulted loans are expected to be recovered,
including the probability that the loans will cure and the value of collateral or the
amount that might be received for selling the asset.

With the exception of credit cards and other revolving facilities, for which the
treatment is separately set out in Note 2.6.5, the maximum period for which the
credit losses are determined is the contractual life of a financial instrument unless
the Bank has the legal right to call it earlier.

The mechanics of the ECL method are summarized below:
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+ Stage 1: The 12mECL is calculated as the portion of LTECLs that represent the
ECLs that result from default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. The Bank
calculates the 12mECL allowance based on the expectation of a default
occurring in the 12 months following the reporting date.

These expected 12-month default probabilities are applied to a forecast
EAD and multiplied by the expected LGD and discounted by an
approximation to the original EIR. This calculation is made for each of
the four scenarios, as explained above.

-Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination,
the Bank records an allowance for the LTECLs. The mechanics are
similar to those explained above, including the use of multiple scenarios,
but PDs and LGDs are estimated over the lifetime of the instrument.
The expected cash shortfalls are discounted by an approximation to the
original EIR.

-Stage 3: For loans considered credit-impaired (as defined in note 33.2.2), the Bank
recognizes the lifetime expected credit losses for these loans. The method
is similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%.

‘POCI POCI assets are financial assets that are credit impaired on initial recognition.
The Bank only recognizes the cumulative changes in lifetime ECLs since
initial recognition, based on a probability-weighting of the four scenarios,
discounted by the credit- adjusted EIR.

Loan commitments and letters of credit

When estimating LTECLs for undrawn loan commitments, the Bank estimates the
expected portion of the loan commitment that will be drawn down over its expected
life. The ECL is then based on the present value of the expected shortfalls in cash
flows if the loan is drawn down, based on a probability-weighting of the three
scenarios. The expected cash shortfalls are discounted at an approximation to the
expected EIR on the loan. For credit cards and revolving facilities that include both
a loan and an undrawn commitment, ECLs are calculated and presented together
with the loan. For loan commitments and letters of credit, the ECL is recognized
within provisions, as disclosed in note 18.2 to the financial statements.

Financial guarantee contracts

The Bank estimates ECLs based on the present value of the expected payments to
reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs. The shortfalls are discounted by
the risk-adjusted interest rate relevant to the exposure. The calculation is made using
a probability-weighting of the three scenarios. The ECLs related to financial
guarantee contracts are recognized within provisions, as disclosed in note 18.2 to the
financial statements.

3.3.4.3 Debt instruments measured at fair value through OCI

The ECLs for debt instruments measured at FVOCI do not reduce the carrying
amount of these financial assets in the statement of financial position, which
remains at fair value. Instead, an amount equal to the allowance that would arise if
the assets were measured at amortized cost is recognized in OCI as an accumulated
impairment amount, with a corresponding charge to profit or loss. The
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accumulated loss recognized in OCI is recycled to the profit and loss upon de
recognition of the assets.

3.3.4.4 Credit cards and other revolving facilities

The Bank’s product offering includes a variety of corporate and retail overdraft and
credit cards facilities, in which the Bank has the right to cancel and/or reduce the
facilities with one day’s notice. The Bank does not limit its exposure to credit losses
to the contractual notice period, but, instead calculates ECL over a period that
reflects the Bank’s expectations of the customer behavior, its likelihood of default
and the Bank’s future risk mitigation procedures, which could include reducing or
cancelling the facilities. Based on past experience and the Bank’s expectations, the
period over which the Bank calculates ECLs for these products, is one year for
corporate and 3 years for retail products.

The ongoing assessment of whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred
for revolving facilities is similar to other lending products. This is based on shifts in
the customer’s internal credit grade, as explained in Note 33.2.2 but greater
empbhasis is also given to qualitative factors such as changes in usage.

The interest rate used to discount the ECLs for credit cards is based on the
average effective interest rate that is expected to be charged over the expected
period of exposure to the facilities. This estimation takes into account that many
facilities are repaid in full each month and are consequently charged no interest.

The calculation of ECLs, including the estimation of the expected period of
exposure and discount rate is made, on an individual basis for corporate and on a
collective basis for retail products. The collective assessments are made separately
for portfolios of facilities with similar credit risk characteristics.

3.3.4.5 Forward looking information

In its ECL models, the Bank relies on a broad range of forward looking information
as economic inputs, such as:

¢ GDP growth
e Unemployment rates
o Consumer price indices

3.3.56 Impairment provision under local
regulations Loans and advances to
customers

The outstanding principal of the advances are classified in accordance with the Asset
Classification and Provisioning Regulation issued by DAB as follows:

iy Standard: These are loans and advances, which are paying in a current manner or at
most past due for the period of 1-30 days, fully secured and is supported by sound
net worth, profitability, liquidity and cash flow of the obligor. Standard assets are
sufficiently secured with respect to the repayment of both the principal amount and
interest. An overdraft would be regarded as Standard if monthly interest payments
and other charges are past due for 1- 30 days, and there was regular activity on the
account with no sign of a hard core of debt developing. A standard provision is
maintained in the books of account @1% (31 December 2018: 1%) of value of such
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loans and advances.

i) Watch: These are loans and advances which are adequately protected, but are
potentially weak. Such an asset constitutes an unwarranted credit risk, but not to the
point of requiring a classification of Substandard. The credit risk may be minor, and
most instances, bank management can correct the noted deficiencies with increased
attention. Further, all loans and advances which are past due by 31 to 60 days for
principal or interest payments are classified as Watch. A provision is maintained in the
books of account not less than 5% of value of such loans and advances.

iy Substandard: These are loans and advances which show clear manifestations of
credit weaknesses that jeopardize the liquidation of the debt. Substandard loans
and advances include loans to borrowers whose cash flows are not sufficient to
meet currently maturing debts, loans to borrowers which are significantly
undercapitalized, and loans to borrowers lacking sufficient working capital to meet
their operating needs.

Further, all loans and advances which are past due by 61 to 120 days for principal or
interest payments are also classified as Substandard. A provision is maintained in the
books of account not less than 25% of value of such loans and advances.

iv) Doubtful: These are loans and advances which display all the weaknesses inherent in
loans and advances classified as Substandard but with the added characteristics that
they are not well secured and the weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full, on
the basis of currently available information, highly questionable and improbable. The
possibility of loss is extremely high, but because of certain mitigating circumstances,
which may work to the advantage and strengthening of the facility, its classification as
an estimated loss is postponed until its more defined status is ascertained. Further all
loans and advances which are past due by 121 to 480 days for principal or interest
payments are also classified as Doubtful. A provision is maintained in the books of
account not less than 50% of value of such loans and advances.

v) Loss: These are loans and advances which are considered uncollectible and of such
little value that their continuation as recoverable facilities is not defensible. This
classification does not imply that the facility has absolutely no recoverable value, but
rather it is not practical or desirable to defer making full provisions for the facility even
though partial recover in future may not be entirely ruled out. Loans and advances
classified as Loss include those to bankrupt companies and insolvent firms with
negative working capital and cash flow or those to judgment debtors with no means or
foreclosable collateral to settle the debts. Further, all loans and advances which are
past due over 481 days for principal and interest payments are classified as Loss. This
category of loans shall be retained in bank balance sheet for the period of 6 month for
recovery purposes and 100% loan loss provisioning should be made. After 6 months,
they shall be immediately written off with the provisioning made.

The bank has also determine provision for expected credit losses under IFRS 9 which
results higher than provision under Asset Classification Provisioning Regulatdon,
accordingly higher provisions were in cooperated in the financial statements as disclosed
in note 9.4 to the financial statements.

Investments, placements and other assets

The bank has policy of maintaining general provision on placements and investments
based on the credit rating, falling in category A (0%), B (0.50%) and C ( 1%), entity also
determine provision for expected credit losses under IFRS 9, the financial statements
are in cooperated with higher provision impact resulting from the mentioned methods,
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as disclosed in notes
7.2.2 & 8.5.2 to the financial statements.

Off-balance sheet item

General provision of 1% is maintained on bank guarantees and letter of credits on
unsecured portion by cash margin as required in Asset Classification and Provisioning
Regulation issued by DAB, however, entity also determine provision for expected credit
losses on off-balance sheet items under IFRS 9, the financial statements are in
cooperated with higher provision impact resulting from the mentioned methods, as
disclosed in note 18.2 to the financial statements.

3.4 Financial liabilities
The Bank classifies its financial liabilities in following categories.
a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are financial liabilities held for trading.
A financial liability is classified in this category if incurred principally for the purpose of
trading or payment in the short term. Derivatives (if any) are also categorized as held for
trading unless they are designated as hedges

b) Other financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

These are non-derivatives financial liabilities with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. These are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred and are subsequently stated at amortized cost; any differences between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognized in the income
statement.

3.5 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its
absence, the most advantageous market to which the Bank has access at the date. The fair value
of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

When available, the Bank measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an
active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or
liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an
ongoing basis.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Bank uses valuation techniques that
maximizes the use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable all of the
factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is normally the
transaction price - i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Bank
determines that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair
value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability
nor based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets, the financial
instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair
value at initial recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently, that difference is recognized
in profit and loss in an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but no later than when
valuation is wholly supported by observable market data or transaction is closed out.
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If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, then the Bank
measures assets and long positions at a bid price and liabilities and short position at an ask price.

Portfolio of financial assets and financial liabilities that are exposed to market risk and credit
risk that are managed by the Bank on the basis of the net exposure to either market risk or
credit risk or measured on the basis of a price that would be received to sell a net long position
(or paid to transfer a net short position) for a particular risk exposure. Those portfolio-level
adjustments are allocated to the individual assets and liabilities on the basis of the relative risk
adjustment of each of the individual instruments in the portfolio.

The Bank recognizes transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred.

3.6 Operating fixed assets

These are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any, except
for land and capital work in progress which is stated at cost less impairment, if any. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.

Subsequent cost are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Bank and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance are recognized in statement of
comprehensive income during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the depreciable amount of
the assets over their estimated useful life as follows:

Building 20 years
Leasehold improvements 3 to 10 years
Computers 3 to 5 years
Office equipment 3 to 5 years
Furniture and fittings 3 to 10 years
ATMs 5 years
Vehicles 5 years

Depreciation is charged on additions during the year from the month they become available for
their intended use while no depreciation is charged in the month of disposal of assets. The
residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at
each statement of financial position date.

Gains and losses on disposal of property and equipment are determined by comparing proceeds
with the carrying amount. These are included in other income in the statement of
comprehensive income.

3.7 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are capitalized only to the extent that the future economic benefits can be
derived by the Bank having useful life of more than one year. Intangible assets are stated at cost
less accumulated amortization. Amortization is charged to income applying the straight line
method.



AFGHANISTAN INTERNATIONAL BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2020

i) Core banking system

The core banking system is capitalized resulting from the acquisition of deposit base of
Standard Chartered Bank (SCB) Afghanistan operations during 2012 which is amortized
over the useful life of 15 years.

i) Computer software

Acquired computer software is capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are amortized over their estimated useful life
of 3 to 10 years.

iy License fee

Acquired trademarks and licenses are initially recognized at historical cost and subsequently
recognized at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate the cost of the licenses over their estimated useful life.

The useful lives of intangibles are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each statement of
financial position date.

3.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization and are
tested annually for impairment. Non-financial assets that are subject to depreciation/
amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss or reversal of impairment
loss is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income. An impairment loss is recognized
for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date. Reversal of the impairment losses is restricted
to the original cost of the assets.

3.9 Taxation
Current

The current income tax charge is calculated in accordance with Income Tax Law, 2009.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not recognized if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
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(other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

3.10 Revenue recognition

3.11

312

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

Interest income and expenses for all interest-bearing financial instruments, except for those
classified as held for trading or designated at fair value through profit or loss, are recognized
within

‘interest income' and ‘interest expense' in the statement of comprehensive income using the
effective interest rate method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial
asset or a financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Bank estimates cash flows
considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider future
credit losses.

Due but unpaid interest income is accrued on overdue advances for periods up to 90
days in compliance with the Banking regulations issued by DAB. After 90 days, overdue
advances are classified as non-performing and further accrual of unpaid interest income
ceases.

Gains and losses on disposal of property and equipment are recognized in the period in
which disposal is made.

Fees and commission income and expense are recognized on an accrual basis when the
service has been provided/received.

Fee and commission income that are integral part to the effective interest rate on financial
assets and liability are included in the measurement of effective interest rate. Other fee and
commission expenses related mainly to the transactions are services fee, which are expensed
as the services are received.

Foreign currency transactions and translation

a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Bank are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the functional currency), which
is Afghani (AFN). All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousands, except when
otherwise indicated

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into functional currency using the exchange rate
prevailing at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated using
the exchange rate at the balance sheet date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at period-end exchange rates of assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in income currently.
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The exchange rate for following currencies against AFN were:

1USD 1 Euro
As at 31 December 2020 77.10 94.03
As at 31 December 2019 77.46 86.01

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when there are present, legal or constructive obligations as a result of
past events; it is probable that an out flow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation; and a reliable estimate of the amounts can be made. Provision for
guarantee claims and other off balance sheet obligations is recognized when intimated and
reasonable certainty exists to settle the obligations.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial
statements when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and the Bank
intends to settle either on a net basis or realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Dividend Distribution

Final dividend distributions to the bank’s shareholders are recognized as a liability in the financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Bank’s shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting while interim dividend are recognized in the period in which the
dividends are declared by the Board of Supervisors.

Earnings per share

The Bank presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic
EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss that is attributable to shareholders of the Bank by
the weighted- average number of shares outstanding during the year.

Employee benefits Defined contribution plan

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service is
provided and recognized as personnel expenses (salaries and benefits) in profit or loss. Prepaid
contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future
payments is available.

Short-term benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed
as the related service is provided.

4. Use of critical accounting estimates and judgments

The Bank makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events thatare believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. The resulting accounting estimates and judgments will, by definition, rarely
equal the related actual results. The material estimates, assumptions and judgments used to measure and
classify the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities are outlined below:
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a)

b)

c)

Impairment losses on financial assets

The banks accounting framework considers both the provision prescribed under local regulations
in Afghanistan and IFRS 9. Therefore, the Bank’s level of provision for impairment against
financial asset considers the requirements of both regimes.

The measurement of impairment losses under IFRS 9across all categories of financial assets
requires judgment, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows
and collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can
result in different levels of allowances.

The Bank’s ECL calculations are outputs of complex models with a number of underlying
assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the
ECL models that are considered accounting judgments and estimates include:

e The Bank’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so
allowances for financial assets should be measured on a LTECL basis and the qualitative
assessment;

o The Bank’s internal credit grading model

¢ The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis

 Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs to such
models.

e Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenatios and, economic inputs,
such as GDP growth

e Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to
derive the economic inputs into the ECL models

It has been the Bank’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss
expetience and adjust when necessary.

The Bank reviews loans to customer balances quarterly for possible impairment and records the
provision for possible loan losses as per the Bank's policy and in accordance with DAB
regulations.

Provision of income taxes

The Bank recognizes tax liability in accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Law 2009.
The final tax liability is dependent on assessment by Ministry of Finance, Government of Islamic
Republic of Afghanistan.

Useful life of property and equipment and intangible assets

The Bank reviews the useful life, depreciation method and residual value of property and
equipment and intangible assets at each statement of financial position date. Any change in
estimates may affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of property and equipment
and intangible assets with a corresponding effect on the depreciation / amortization charge.
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2020 2019
5  Cash and balances with Da Afghanistan Bank Note ---------- AFN in '000 ----------
Cash in hand 2,690,150 2,432,604
Cash in hand - Islamic banking division 271,234 180,747
Cash at Automated Teller Machines (ATMs) 633,057 648,553
3,594,441 3,261,904
Balances with Da Afghanistan Bank:
Local currency:
- Deposit facility accounts 5. 374,657 1,107,189
- Required reserve accounts 5.2 637,031 588,501
- Current accounts 922,316 496,894
1,934,004 2,192,584
Foreign currency:
- Required reserve accounts 5.2 5,430,956 5,337,790
- Current accounts 1,549,423 3,066,739
6,980,379 8,404,529
12,508,824 13,859,017

5.1 This represents interest bearing account carrying interest @ 0.10% (31 December, 2019: 0.10%) per annum.

5.2 Required reserves are maintained with Da Afghanistan Bank (DAB), denominated in respective currencics, to meet minimum
reserve requirement in accordance with Article 3 "Required Reserves Regulation" of the Banking Regulations issued by DAB.
Theses balances are interest free.

2020 2019
6  Balances with other banks Note ==mmeeeee- AFN in '000 ----------
With Crown Agents Bank:
- in NOStro accounts 7,422,008 2,893,292
With other banks 6.1 4,536,096 4,344,479
11,958,104 7257071
6.1 These represent non-interesting bearing balances available on demand basis.
7  Placements - net
Placements with banks 1 17,470,395 15,106,058
Impairment allowances for losses 7.2 (7,325) (21,011)
17,463,070 15,085,047

7.1 These represent USD and Euro denominated fixed rerm placements with financial institudons outside Afghanistan up to a
maximum period of one year (2019: one year) and carry interest at rates ranging from 0.15% to 1.80% (31 December, 2019:
1.40% to 3.50%) per annum.

7.2 The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk for categories based on the Bank’s credit
rating grades and year-end stage classification as at 31 December 2020 and 2019, respectively. The amounts presented are gross of
impairment allowances. Details of the Bank’s rating grades are explained in note 33.2.2.
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31 December, 2020

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 31 December,
Collective Collective Collective 2019
AFN '000' AFN '000' AFN '000' AFN '000' AFN '000'
Rating
Performing
Investment Grade 17,470,395 - - 17,470,395 14,584,590
Non-Investment Grade - - - - 521,468
Non-performing - - - - -
Total 17,470,395 - - 17,470,395 15,106,058

Provision for expected
credit losses (982) - - (982) (1,055)

Provision for impairment losses

as per ACPR - (note 7.2.2) (6,342) - . (6,343) (19,956)
Total (7,325) . (7,325) (21,011)
Net balance 17,463,070 . 17,463,070 15,085,047

7.3 The provision for expected credit losses on placements as per IFRS 9 amounted to AFN 982 thousands (31 December, 2019:
AFN 1,055 thousands) which is lower from the one resulting from Assets Classification and Provisioning Regulation
requirements (ACPR). Accordingly, the Bank has maintained higher provision as required under ACPR.

2020 2019
8 Investments - net Note — ssssssssss AFN in '000 -----=====
Debt instruments at fair value through OCI:
- Investment bonds 8.1 9,331,990 7,837,520
Debt instruments at amortised cost:
- Capital notes with DAB 8.2 1,784,443 742,372
- Treasury bills 8.3 - 934,684
- Investment bonds 8.4 5,968,764 9,415,638
7,753,207 11,092,694
17,085,197 18,930,214
Allowance for ECL / impairment losses 8.5 (18,228) (14,465)
17,066,969 18,915,749

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

These represent investments in sovereign bonds having maturity ranging from January 2021 to July 2030 (31 December, 2019:
January 2020 to April 2026) and carrying interest rates ranging from 0.13% to 8.75% (31 December, 2019: 2.38% to 8.75%) per
annum. These investments arc managed by Julius Bacr, Credit Suisse and Emirates NBD on behalf of the Bank.

These represent investments in Capital notes issued by DAB having maturity ranging upto October 2021 (31 December, 2019:
February 2020 to November 2020) carrying yield ranging from 0.85% to 3.00% (31 December, 2019: 0.93% to 2.20%) per
annum receivable on maturity of respective notes.

This represents investment in United States of America - Treasury bills which matured in January 2020, carried yield of 1.53%
(31 December, 2019: 1.53%) per annum receivable on maturiry.

These represent investments in sovereign bonds carrying interest rates ranging from 1.25% to 6.88% (31 December, 2019: 1.25%
to 7.75%) per annum. These investments have maturity ranging from January 2021 to April 2025 (31 December, 2019: January
2020 to August 2025). These investments are managed by Julius Baer, Credit Suisse and Emirates NBD on behalf of the Bank.

Impairment allowance for investments

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk for categories based on the Bank’s credit rating
grades and year-end stage classification as at 31 December 2020 and 2019, respectively. The amounts presented are gross of
impairment allowances. Details of the Bank’s rating grades are explained in note 32.2.2.
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9.1

92

31 December 2020

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 31 December,
Collective Collective Collective 2019

Rating AFN '000' AFN '000' AFN '000' AFN '000' AFN '000'
Performing
Investment Grade 13,327,485 1,443,768 - 14,771,253 18,022,260
Non-Investment Grade 1,982,348 189,204 - 2,171,552 817,373
Total 15,309,833 1,632,971 - 16,942,805 18,839,633
Provision for expected

credit losses (14,169) (4,059) - (18,228) (9,813)
Provision for Impairment losses

as per ACPR - - - - (4,652)
Total (14,169) (4,059) - (18,228) (14,465)
Mark to market adjustment on debt 142,391 - E 142,391 90,581
instruments at fair value through
OCI
Net balance 15,438,056 1,628,913 - 17,066,968 18,915,749

The provision for expected credit losses on investments as per IFRS 9 amount to AFN 18,228 thousands (31 December, 2019:
AFN 9,813 thousands) which is higher than the Asset Classification and Provisioning Regulation (ACPR). Accordingly, the Bank
has maintained higher provision as required as per IFRS 9.

2020 2019
Loan and advances to customers - net Note aemcemeae= AFN in "000 --emenmmem
Overdrafts 9.1 2,283,417 3,208,365
Term loans 9.2 1,189,781 531,421
Consumer loans 2.3 40,588 51,546
3,513,786 3,791,332
General provision 9.4 (154,200) (154,920)
Allowance for ECL / impairment losses 9.5 (689,447) (218,602)
2,670,139 3,417,810
Particulars of loans and advances - (gross)
Short term (for up to one year) 1,190,499 3,318,947
Non-current (for over one year) 2,323,287 472,500
3,513,786 3,791,447

These represent balances due from customers at various inferest rates ranging from 7.00% to 14.50% p.a. (31 December, 2019:
7.00% to 15.00%) per annum and are secured against mortgage of properties, personal guarantees and pledge of stocks. These
include loans and advances to Small Medium Size Enterprises (SMEs) amounting to AFN 2,283 (31 December, 2019: AFN
71,884 thousand) which are also partially backed by Afghanistan Credit Guarantee Foundation (ACGF) guarantees to the extent
defined in agreement with ACGF.

Term loans carry interest at various rates ranging from 5.50% to 18.00% p.a. (31 December, 2019: 5.50% to 21.00% p.a.) and are
secured against mortgage of properties, personal guarantees, lien on equipment, pledge of stocks and/or assignment of
receivables of the borrowers. These include loans and advances to SMEs amounting to AFN 210,862 thousands (31 December,
2019: AFN 228,333 thousand) which are also partially backed by Afghanistan Credit Guarantee Foundation (ACGF) guarantees
to the extent defined in agreement with ACGF.

Term loans included Small Business loans amounted to AFN 32,819 thousands as of 31 December 2018 with interest rate ranging
from 13% to 18% p.a. These loans were secured against deposit of original dtle deed, corporate guarantee by a registered
company and hypothecation of movable fixed assets as collateral after registration from DAB.
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9.3

9.4

9.5

10

These include payroll loans provided to individual payroll account holders and employees of corporate customers having payroll
account with the Bank carrying interest rate of 13% to 18% (31 December, 2019: 18%) p.a., loans provided to university and
school teachers carrying interest rate of 13% to 15% (31 December, 2019: 15%) and credit card loans carrying inferest of 36% (31
December, 2019: 36%) on annual basis on outstanding balances.

This represent additional general provision maintained by the bank which is duly approved by DAB.

Allowance for ECL / Impairment allowance for loans and advances to customers

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk for categories based on the Bank’s credit rating
grades and year-end stage classification as at 31 December 2020 and 2019, respectively. The amounts presented are gross of
impairment allowances. Derails of the Bank’s rating grades are explained in note 32.2.2.

31 December, 2020 31 December,
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 2019
AFN '000'

Gross loan porifolio
Internal Rating Grade
Performing
High Grade 171,349 3,847 - 175,196 640,393
Standard Grade 2,055,529 262,910 - 2,318,438 2,808,486
Sub Standard Grade 13,222 16,297 - 29,519 14,739
Non-performing - - 990,633 990,633 327,714
Total 2,240,100 283,054 990,633 3,513,786 3,791,332
Allowance for ECL. [ impairment losses
Opening balance 10,836 28,745 179,021 218,602 68,908
Allowances for impairment made
during the year 34,253 (9,191) 697,752 722,814 146,424
Amounts written off during the year - - (236,892) (236,892) (12,374)
Exchange rate differences and other
adjustments - - - (15,077) 15,644
Provision held for expected credit
losses 45,089 19,554 639,881 689,447 218,602
Net balance 2,195,010 263,499 350,752 2,824,339 3,572,730

The Bank has filed suits for the recovery of loans and advances (principal due) against the defaulted borrowers amounting to
AFN 1,029,119 thousands (31 December 2018: AFN 754,965 thousands) as at the year end. These suits are pending decisions at
various courts. The Bank’s management is of the view that the aforementioned suits will be decided in its favor due to sound legal
footings.

IFRS 9 expected credit loss amounts to AFN 680,428 thousands as at 31 December 2020. The provision of AFN (689,447
thousand (General provision: AFN 24,859 and Specific provision: AFN 675,665 thousands) (31 December, 2019: provision of
AFN 218,602 comprising of General provision of AFN 21,061 and Specific provision of AFN 197,541 thousands) made under
Assets Classification and Provisioning Regulation (ACPR) is higher than IFRS 9 ECL, therefore, the Bank has maintained the
higher provision under the requirements of ACPR.

Receivable from financial institutions

This represents non-interest bearing net receivable balance due from CSCBank SAL (CSC). The Bank under the agreement with
CSC provides the enablement platform for credit/ debit card transactions, under fee sharing arrangement, and transfers the cash
in ATMs to CSC. Usage charges are payable by the Bank to CSC.
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11 Property and equipment

Capiral work-in-progress

Property and equipment

11.1 Capital work-in-progress

Advances to suppliers and contractors
Advances to related party

Movement in capital work in progress
Opening

Additons during the year

Transferred to operating fixed assets
Transferred to intangible assets
Adjustments /write-offs

Closing

Note

11.1
11.2

2020 2019

---------- N o SET11 p—
48,078 339,623
3,535,313 3,110,719
3,583,391 3,450,342
48,078 85,570
. 254,053
48,078 339,623
339,623 79,949
123,997 429,370
(372,523) (69,042)
(25,195) (100,654)

(17,824) :
48,078 330,623




sieak g SIEIA G SIBIA () 01 € SIEIA G 01 ¢ sIedA GOl ¢ SIBIA O] 01 € sieahg ol | sieak (g 1] [yas[]

CIESESE 6b0°L 00688 S19'9% yTILE £59°201 LIZ'81 STT 68Y 196°L95T 895 LLL 0TOT 32quada(] [§ It dueeg
61L0LLE 010t 09¢'78 990'6t Z€191 6.8°0L cEhsl 69.v9¢ 905 0¢H T 896 LLL 610T 22quiada(] ¢ e 2dueey
TC9°6L6T PIEL £9.°06 7008 8€°S L¥6'bL L1161 = 0L9°LSS'T 89¢°LLI 610z Asenue([ | 1e 2oue[eyg

siunowe Fuiuen)

89¢°156 €0€°T6 691 08€°1Z 089°SH1 LSPIIT L6V'TE 09S'vET S6L'89T . 0ZOT 32quda(] [§ e 2IUT[eg
861°151) (cL1D) 6ZT'1 (1.0 (106°%S) (1s8've) {cer'gs) E : = Jo-uonum /siuounsnipy
986°9tT LE STT91 LS0T LS8'S G651 €98°6 rro'0L LOE 6T ; ek o 30y adrey7)
086658 8EY' PG ove'Lel F6€°1T PTL Y61 gLLegl 190°18 916°¢9 88t°6¢ 1 = 0zog Lsenue( | 1 2duepeg
086°558 8CH 6 0vT'LTL P6E°1T YZL V6T CIL'EET L9018 916°€9 88Y°6ET 2 610T 12quada ] ¢ e adurey
(r9T'8) * - - = : (roz'8) = - = Jjo-usnum /siuaunsnlpy
£€9°69¢ o'y 880°L1 TOLT ISE°L 9.¥°6E 8699 916'¢9 085'8C1 3 xeak 2t 30y 2dey)
119°865 91+06 zsr'olt 269°81 €L5°L81 L£T'86 €978 - 80601 2 610z Arenue( [ 1w oueey
uvonenasda(g

18998y 79€°66 S6S'CET $66°L9 +08°Z81 II'vie SIL0S 98L°CT9 9GL 9¢8T 89¢°LLI 0TOT +2quiada(] |¢ v 2our[ed
(og6'est) (o) (L2L'v) (860°01) (688°8¢<) (65T°¢E) (¢L¥'op) = 2 - Jjo-uamum /siuaunsnipy
(TLe'ol) . . = - 8 = (zLe'ol) - - pozdoansa ]
L9ETIE ; vOv 606°C 062'T 889 9£0°90€ - = suonippy
€TSTLE 1se’l 99/'8T 62T L 8T6°LT 88t 0F E g T9L°99C = d1AD) WOl s1jsuel ],
669996°€ grt'86 009'602 09F°0L 968°01¢ T6S'¥0T 00596 189°8T¢ P66'695T 89S LLL 0zog Aenue( | 1 oouveg
669°996°¢ 8b 86 009602 09v°0L 9¢8°01T 76S'v0T 00596 189°87¢ $66°695'T 89S°LLL 610T 22quIada(] ¢ 1e 2durey
L1zt = 2 = . . (TL6%6) sk’ ” = Jo-unnum /siwaunsnipy
SLL SLL 7 £ s . - = g 2 suonippy’
TH0'69 2 G898 99%°| SH6'LL 80F°1€ A N'] J 911 a d A\ WOy sIpsues ]
92662 - : - - - 2 976'6T¢ B - 91 Siel] 01 vonisUERN VO JudUnsNIpY
€€T8LSE €CLL6 S16°00T ¥66'89 116261 PRLCLL 05£°86 3 8/5°89S°T 89G°LLI 610z frenue| | 1w ouepeg
1507)

000, NAV
e, SAPIYIA SILLV saumy yuowdmba simndwon)  sywdwdsosdun $1288Y Juippng pue|
29 2IMIwIn,g YO ployasex| as(] Jo sy
- sdwpjing
pasex] wowdmba pue &uadosg 711

020 “YAINADAA 1€ FAANT JVHA HH.L 404
SLNHWHLVLS TVIONVNIA FHL O.L SHLON
MANVE TVNOLLYNYHLNI NV.LSINVHOAV

|
i
|
:
:
|
r
t



AFGHANISTAN INTERNATIONAL BANK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2020

12

13

Intangible assets

Computer software, licenses and core banking system

Cost

Balance at 01 January 2019
Transfers from CWIP
Additions

Balance at 31 December 2019

Balance at 01 January 2020
Transfers from CWIP
Additons

Balance at 31 December 2020

Amortization

Balance at 01 January 2019
Charge for the year

Balance at 31 December 2019

Balance at 01 January 2020
Charge for the year
Balance at 31 December 2020

Carrying amounts
Balance at 01 January 2019

Balance at 31 December 2019

Balance at 31 December 2020

Useful life

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) arising in respect of:

Provision on investments, placements, loans and advances and other assets

Provision on guarantees and commercial letter of credits

Surplus on revaluation of investments

Carry forward taxable losses

Accelerated tax depreciation and amortization

2020 2019
---------- AFN in '000 ----------
364,323 426,328
Computer License fee Core Banking Total
software System
AFN '000
358,851 73.231 542,677 974,759
100,654 - - 100,654
9,255 - - 9,255
468,760 73,231 542,677 1,084,668
468,760 13251 542,677 1,084,668
7,662 17,533 - 25,195
476,422 90,764 542,677 1,109,863
285,005 64,430 230,786 580,221
36,128 7,336 34,655 78,119
321,133 71,766 265,441 658,340
321,133 71,766 265,441 658,340
35,385 15,619 36,197 87,201
356,518 87,385 301,638 745,541
73,846 8,801 311,891 394,538
147,627 1,465 277,236 426,328
119,904 3,380 241,039 364,323
3 to 10 years 3 to 10 years 15 years
2020 2019
Note =~ ———--=mmm- AFN in '"000 ---==-=---
5,177 7,096
5,888 14,376
(36,711) (17,110)
414,339 189,383
(301,150) (228,044)
13.1 87,543 (34,299)
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14.1

14.2

15

15.1
15.2

16

17

17.1

Receivable from Do]

This represents receivables from the United States Government department, Department of Justice (the “Do]”). Pursuant to Title
18, U.S. Code Section 981(k), the United States sought to reach the customer's Afghan-based accounts by seizing funds
amounting to AFN 565.701 million (equivalent to USD 10.1 million) from the Bank's correspondent account in the United
States, however, the United States has not alleged any wrongdoing against the Bank. In September 2013, the United States
returned to the Bank approximately USD 5.770 million, plus accrued interest, of the seized funds. In September 2015, the court
ruled that AIB lacked standing to claim the funds amounting to USD 147,938.59 of the remaining USD 4.330 million. During the
year, upon notice of the voluntary dismissal by the United States in April 2020, the remaining seized funds amounting to USD
4.182 million plus accrued interest have been returned ro the Bank.

This represents provision maintained on advances to staff as per Asset Classification and Provisioning Regulation issued by DAB
(31 December 2019: provision for expected credit losses on advances to staff).

2020 2019

Customers' deposits Note ~—  scscasesce AFN in "000 ---=nmmnm=
Current deposits 59,380,041 56,415,963
Saving deposits 1501 249,460 244,037
Term deposits - -
Islamic deposits 15.2 1,771,814 1,335,001
Cash margin held against bank guarantees and letters of credit 810,016 848,105

62,211,331 58,843,106
Saving deposits carry interest @ 3% p.a. (31 December, 2019: 3% p.a.)
Islamic deposits can be further analyzed as follows:
Current deposits 223,103 144910
Saving deposits 1,523,139 1,146,234
Term deposits 25,572 43,855

1,771,814 . 1,334,999

Deposits from bank

Represents term deposit of AFN Nil (31 December 2019: AFN 500,000 thousands) from Pashtany Bank that carries interest of
1.87 % per annum and maturing on 8 June 2020.

2020 2019

Note ~  =====s=-m- AFN in '000 ----------
Lease liabilities
Opening balance 265,040 317,856
Additions during the year 306,076 -
Derecognized during the year (10,972) (1,113)
Lease rentals paid (95,549) (68,992)
Finance cost for the year 9,479 5,351
Exchange (gain)/ loss (4,434) 11,938

171 469,641 265,040

Lease liabilities represent the amounts payable relating to the right-of-use assets recognized on account of branches under
operating leases. The maturity analysis of lease liabilities are presented in note 33.3.2.
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18

18.1

18.2

19

19.1

19.2

19.3

20

21

21.1

21.2

2020 2019

Other liabilities Wote: @ ‘ceetemes AFN ia 000 —-ccsoces
Accruals and other payables 12,671 12,148
Amounts pending transfers to customers' accounts 18.1 50,324 46,222
Retention money payable 979 14,927
Payable from sale of collateral against loans and advances written off 4,028 64,924
Others 58,415 123,479

Provision on

Financial guarantees 18.2 28,753 71,582
Commercial letter of credits 18.2 687 299
29,440 71,881
155,857 333,581

This represents amounts received on behalf of the customers, however, not credited in the respective customer accounts due to
incomplete identification data.

This represents 1% provision on unsecured portion of bank guarantees, not backed by cash margin, as required in Asset
Classification and Provisioning Regulation issued by DAB, however, IFRS 9 provision for expected credit loss computed on
unfunded financing facilities amounts to AFN 29,440 thousand (31 December, 2019: AFN 47,074 thousand). The provision
under regulations issued by DAB is lower than IFRS 9 ECL, therefore, the Bank has maintained the IFRS 9 ECL provision.

2020 2019
Share capital e AFN in '000 ---==nennm
Authorized 30,000,000 (2019: 30,000,000) ordinary shares of AFN 48.84 each 1,465,071 1,465,071
Issued, subscribed and paid-up - 30,000,000 (31 December 2019: 30,000,000)
ordinary shares of AFN 48.8357 each fully paid in cash 1,465,071 1,465,071

Pursuant to letter n0.918/703 dated 17 May 2010 issued by Da Afghanistan Bank (DAB), the Bank complies with the minimum
paid-up capital requirement for commercial banks in Afghanistan amounting to AFN 1 billion or US § 20 million.

Horizon Associates LLC and Wilton Holding Limited each holds 46.25% of issued, subscribed and paid up capital while
remaining 7.5% is held by International Finance Corporation which is same as per previous year.

During the year, the Bank has paid cash dividend of AFN 10.87 per share (31 December, 2019: AFN 22.17 per share) amounting
to AFN 326 million (31 December, 2019: AFN 665 million).

Capital reserves

Article 93 Reserve Capital of Corporations and Limited Liability Companies Law of Afghanistan, requires that Bank should
transfer 5% of its profit to Capiral Reserve to compensate for future possible losses to the extent such capital reserves reach up to
25% of the Bank's capital. The Bank's capital reserves as at 31 December, 2020 stood at AFN 306,319 thousands (31 December,
2019: AFN 290,813 thousands.

Contingencies and commitments 2020 2019
Contingencies e AFN in '000 ----------
Financial guarantees 21.1 7,158,183 7,946,230

These represent bid bonds and performance guarantees issued by the Bank in the normal course of business. These are 100%
secured against the cash margin and counter guarantees.

The Bank is also facing certain litigations on which no provision is required as per the opinion of legal advisor.

Commitments
(a) Undrawn loan and overdraft facilities 1,071,813 524,394
(b) Commercial letters of credit 662,409 48,537

1,734,222 572,931
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Interest income - calculated using the effective interest method

Balances with DAB and other banks
Placements

Debt instruments at FVOCI

Debt instruments at amortized cost

Loans and advances to customers

Interest expense

Customers' deposits
Deposits from bank

Fee and commission income

Loans and advances to customers

Trade finance products

Cash withdrawals / Cash transfers
Customers' account service charges
Income from ATMs

Income from guarantee arrangements
Payroll services

Others

Fee and commission expense

Guarantee / letter of credit commission
Bank charges

Other income

Loans and advances recovered previously written off
Amounts received from Do]
Others

Credit losses (reversal) / expense

Note

14.1

2020 2019

---------- AFN in '000 ----=nen-
16,118 25,801
217,490 494,077
261,831 200,179
211,330 283,565
325,129 379,617
1,031,898 1,383,239
15,246 33,261
4,156 3,707
19,402 36,068
45,498 41,398
37,375 51,254
494,465 512,184
104,101 131,403
93,043 97,798
120,473 138,154
72,809 75,509
29,404 34,173
997,168 1,081,873
5,828 13,078
1,680 2,199
7,508 15,277
5,702 46,414
322,166 .
3,282 :
331,151 46,414

The table below shows the ECL charges on financial instruments for the year recorded in the income statement:

31 December, 2020

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 31 December
Col]egctive couegctive coucgcn've Regulasoty b 2019
Note AFN '000' AFN '000' AFN '000' AFN '000' AFN '000'
Placements 12 748 (821) - (13,614) (13,687) (9,932)
Investments 8.5 14,523 3,695 - (14,455) 3,763 (10,124)
Loans and advances 9.5 34,253 (9,191) 460,860 187,058 672,980 149,694
General Provision 9.4 - - - (720) (720) 4,300
Other assets 14.2 - - - 326 326 (9,703)
Financial guarantees 18.2 - - - (42,829) (42,829) (3,652)
Letter of credit 18.2 - - - 388 388 299
Total (reversal) on
impairment/ loss for the year 49,525 (6,317) 460,860 116,155 620,221 120,882
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2020 2019
28 General and administrative expenses Note eeeeeeee- AFN in "000 --==annmn-

[ Salaries and benefits 624,958 613,301

Rental, rates and taxes 28.1 30,352 34,540

Electricity, generator and fuel 72,396 89,743

l Repairs and maintenance 16,126 20,766

Information technology cost 148,756 94,374

Security cost 124,351 122,368

Depreciation 11.2 246,586 265,633

Amortization 121 87,201 78,119

Directors fee and their meeting expenses 27,101 39,588

Travelling and accommodation 36,926 61,105

Communication, swift and internet 58,505 56,241

Stationery and printing 34,302 53,768

Legal and professional charges 77,889 94971

Asset management fee to investment advisors 67,643 54,662

Auditors' remuneration 14,553 10,093

Marketing and promotion 11,984 28,305

Money service providers charges 2,444 4174

Insurance 173,658 155,302

Subscriptions and memberships 7,148 9,126

Other charges 115,981 82,401

Taxes and penalties 620 4,028

Corporate social responsibility 12,116 7,148
Corona virus costs 12,926

Others 19,001 21,192

2,023,522 2,000,948

28.1 This includes AFN 16,500 thousands (31 December, 2019: AFN 19,541 thousands) on account of short term lease (less
than 12 months) which have not been accounted for in the lease model of IFRS 16 and recognized in expense on straight

2020 2019
29 Taxation Note —ccmmemae= AFN in "000 -=-remaemn

Current:
For the year 291 - -
Prior periods - (25,785)
Deferred:
For the year (141,443) 91,694

(141,443) 65,909

29.1 Owing to carry forward tax losses, no provision for taxation has been made during the period.

29.2 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit

Accounting profit for the year 168,686 674,077
Tax at the applicable rate of 20% 33,131 134,816
Deductible expenses (140,937) (135,648)
Non-deductble expenses 167 832
Effect of temporary differences 71,421 21,354
Effect of carry forward taxable losses 177,055 70,340
Adjustment in respect of income tax of prior years 5 (25,785)
141,443 65,909

L.
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Related party transactions

The Bank has a related party relationship with its shareholders, their related entities, directors and key management personnel.
The Bank had transactions with following related parties at mutually agreed terms during the year:

Directors and other key
management personnel (and  Shareholders and its associated

close family members) companies
2020 2019 2020 2019

Nature of transactions AFN '000 :
(a) Loans and advances to related parties
Loans outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,908 - 174,781 174,011
Loans issued during the year 1,540 1,908 167,338 169,316
Loans repayments during the year (770) - (169,184) (168,354)
Exchange gain - - - (193)
Loans outstanding at the end of the year 2,678 1,908 172,934 174,781
Interest income earned 964 57 11,918 11,544

During the year, an amount of AFN 112,825 thousand (31 December, 2019: AFN 254,053 thousand) was paid to Mohib
Advance Design Construction Company (MADCC) (related party) against certain construction and other works remaining after
completion of head office and renovation work at Mazar branch.

Provision for expected credir losses on outstanding balances of loans and advances to related parties amounts to AFN 8,647
thousands (31 December 2019: AFN 1,748 thousand).

The facilities provided to related parties carry mark-up of 7% p.a. (31 December, 2019: 7% p.a.) payable on monthly basis and are
secured against mortgage of property and personal guarantees of directors and representative of shareholders of the Bank,

Directors and other key

management personnel (and Shareholders and its associated
close family members)

companies

2020 2019 2020 2019
Nature of transactions AFN '000
(b) Deposits from related parties
Deposits at the beginning of the year 57,309 19,061 67,414 53,472
Deposits received during the year 338,400 440,748 2,764,480 4,203,122
Deposits repaid during the year (338,694) (402,726) (2,767,738) (4,190,581)
Exchange rate difference (274) 226 319 1,401
Deposits at the end of the year 56,741 57,309 64,474 67,414
Interest expense on deposits - - -
These represent current account of related parties, which do not carry interest (31 December 2019: Nil).

2020 2019 2020 2019
Nature of transactions AFN '000
(c) Other related party transactions
Fee and commission income - - 5,962 6,017
Directors' fee 20,615 30,038 - -
Rental expenses = = 24,939 54,301
Travelling expense 6,486 9,550 -

2020 2019

(d) Key Management compensation s AFN in '000 -==-=-----
Salaries and other short-term benefits 74,911 63,545

Key Management personnel of the Bank include the Chief Executive Officer,Deputy Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial
Officer and Chief Operating Officer.
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Credit Risk

The Bank takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will cause a financial loss for the Bank by
failing to discharge an obligation. Credit risk is the most important risk for the Bank's business; management therefore
carefully manages its exposure to credit risk. Credit exposures arise principally in lending activities that lead to loans and
advances, balances with banks and receivable from financial institution and placements with other banks. Credit risk also arises
in off-balance sheet financial instruments, such as Bank's contingencies and commitments. The credit risk management and
control are centralized in credit risk management team of Bank and reported to the management team and head of each
business unit regularly. Balances with DAB are not exposed to credit risk.

Credit risk measurement
Definition of default and cure

The Bank considers a financial instrument defaulted and therefore Stage 3 (credit-impaired) for ECL calculations in all cases
when the borrower becomes 90 days past due on its contractual payments. As a part of a qualitatve assessment of whether a
customer is in default, the Bank also considers a variety of instances that may indicate unlikeliness to pay. When such events
occur, the Bank carefully considers whether the event should result in treating the customer as defaulted and therefore
assessed as Stage 3 for ECL calculations or whether Stage 2 is appropriate.

It is the Bank’s policy to consider a financial instrument as ‘cured’ and therefore re-classified out of Stage 3 when none of the
default criteria have been present for at least 3 consecutive months. The decision whether to classify an asset as Stage 2 or
Stage 1 once cured depends on the updated credit grade, at the time of the cure, and whether this indicates there has been a
significant increase in credit risk compared to initial recognition. The bank is observing a probationary period of 2 minimum of
3 instalments (for repayments which are on a quarterly basis or shorter) and 12 months (in cases where instalments are on a
longer frequency than quarterly) after the restructuring, before upgrading from Stage 3 to 2.

Credit ratings and PD estimation process

The exposure at default (EAD) represents the gross carrying amount of the financial instruments subject to the impairment
calculation, addressing both the client’s ability to increase its exposure while approaching default and potential early
repayments too.

The EADs are determined based on the expected payment profile, which varies by product type. For amortizing products and
bullet repayment loans, this is based on the contractual repayments owed by the borrower over the 12 months and lifetime
basis. This is also adjusted for any overpayments made by the borrower. For revolving products, the EAD is predicted by
taking current drawn balance and adding a credit conversion factor which allows for the expected drawdown of the remaining
limit by the time of default.

To calculate the EAD for a Stage 1 loan, the Bank assesses the possible default events within 12 months for the calculation of
the 12m ECL. For Stage 2, Stage 3 and POCI financial assets, the exposure at default is considered for events over the lifetime
of the instruments.

Loss given default

Bank calculates Loss Given Default (LGD) rates and these LGD rates take into account the EAD for historical pool of non-
performing loans in comparison to the amount recovered or realized against such loans. In determine LGDs, the Bank
considers all eligible collateral provided the collateral can be legally enforced. Due to the complexities involved in the
Afghanistan regarding collateral realization and lack of historical experience to demonstrate recoveries through realization of
collaterals, the Bank restricts the expected recoveries (to be considered in LGD computations) based on its historical recovery

Significant increase in credit risk

The Bank continuously monitors all assets subject to ECLs. In order to determine whether an instrument or a portfolio of
instruments is subject to 12mECL or LTECL, the Bank assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition. The Bank has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of
whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. Significant increase in credit risk
is measured by comparing the risk of default estimated at origination with the risk of default at reporting date. The Bank also
applies a secondary qualitative method for triggering a significant increase in credit risk for an asset, such as moving a
customer/ facility to the watch list, or the account becoming forborne. Regardless of the change in credit grades, if contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, the credit risk is deemed to have increased significantly since initial recognition.
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33.2.3

Measuring expected credit losses - ECL

PD, EAD and LGD are multiplied together and adjusted for the likelihood of survival (i.e. the exposure has not prepaid or
defaulted in earlier year) on annual basis. This effectively calculates an ECL for each future year, which is then discounted
back to the reporting date and summed. The discount rate used in ECL computation is the original effective interest rate or an
approximation thereof.

Forward looking economic information is also included in determining the 12 month and lifeime ECL. The bank has
performed historical analysis and identified key economic variables impacting credit risk and ECL for each portfolio. These
economic variables and their associated impact on PD, EAD and LGD vary by financial instrument. Expert judgement has
also been applied in this process. Forecast of these economic variables (the “base economic scenario”) are obtained from
external sources on a quarterly basis.

In addition to the base economic scenario, the management also estimate other possible scenarios along with scenarios
weighting. The scenario weighting are determined by an expert credit judgement. As with any economic forecasts, the
projections and likelihoods of the occurrence are subject to a high degree of inherent uncertainty and therefore the actual
outcomes may be significantly different to those projected. The bank considers these estimates of the possible outcomes. The
bank has used base, upside and downside scenarios for its ECL estimation.

Impairment under local regulations

(i) Over due balances on loans to customers are segmented into four categories as described in note 4.4(b). The percentage of
provision created on such over due balances are as per guidelines issued by DAB and reflects the range of default probabilities
defined for each category. This means that, in principle, exposures migrate between classes as the assessment of their
probability of default changes.

(ii) Exposure at default is based on the amounts, the Bank expects to be owed at the time of default. For example, for a loan
this is the face value. For a commitment, the Bank includes any amount already drawn plus the further amount that may have
been drawn by the tume of default, should it occur,

(iif) Loss given default or loss severity represents the Bank’s expectation of the extent of loss on a claim should default occur.
It is expressed as percentage loss per unit of exposure and typically varies by type of counterparty, type and seniority of claim
and availability of collateral or other credit mitigation.

(b) Other than loans and advances

Other than loans and advances includes balances with other banks and financial institutions and placements with other banks,
investments in bonds and held with DAB and other assets. Judgments and instructions from the Bank's treasury are being
used by the Bank's management in placing funds with other banks and are viewed as a way to gain better credit quality
mapping and maintain a readily available source to meet the funding requirements at the same time when required.

Further, the Bank has banking relationships with financial institutions which have good international reputation and strong
financial standing and therefore, probability of default by such financial institutions is low.

Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Bank manages, limits and controls concentrations of credit risk wherever they are identified — in particular, to individual
counterparties and groups, industries and countries.

The Bank structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk accepted in relation to one
borrower, or groups of borrowers, and to geographical and industry segments. Such risks are monitored on a revolving basis
and subject to an annual or more frequent review, when considered necessary. Limits on the level of credit risk by product and
industry sector are approved quarterly by the Management Board.

The exposure to any one borrower is further restricted by sub-limits covering on- and off-balance sheet exposures. Actual
exposures against limits are monitored daily.

Exposure to credit risk is also managed through analysis of the ability of borrowers and potential borrowers to meet interest
and capital repayment obligations at the time of loan appraisal for initial and subsequent loans.

Some other specific control and mitigation measures are outlined below.
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(a) Collateral

The Bank employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate credit risk. The most traditional of these is the taking of
security for funds advances, which is common practice. The Bank implements guidelines on the acceptability of specific
classes of collateral or credit risk mitigation. The principal collateral types for loans and advances are:

| *  Mortgages over residential properties
} *  Charges over business assets such as premises, inventory and accounts receivable

In addition, in order to minimize the credit loss, the Bank will seek additional collateral from the counterparty as soon as
| impairment indicators are noticed for the relevant individual loans and advances.

(b) Credit-related commitments

The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds are available to a customer as required. Guarantees and
standby letters of credit carry the same credit risk as loans. Documentary and commercial letters of credit — which are written
undertakings by the Bank on behalf of a customer authorizing a third party to draw drafts on the Bank up to a stpulated
amount under specific terms and conditions — are collateralized by the underlying shipments of goods to which they relate and
therefore carry less risk than a direct loan.

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of authorizations to extend credit in the form of loans, guarantees or
letters of credit. With respect to credit risk on commitments to extend credit, the Bank is potentially exposed to loss in an
amount equal to the total unused commitments. However, the likely amount of loss is less than the total unused
commitments, as most commitments to extend credit are contingent upon customers maintaining specific credit standards.
The Bank monitors the term to maturity of credit commitments because longer-term commitments generally have a greater
degree of credit risk than shorter-term commitments.

33.2.4 Analysis of maximum exposure to credit risk and collateral and other credit enhancements

Maximum exposure

2020 2019
AFN '000 AFN '000

Credit risk exposures relating to on-balance sheet items are as follows:
Balances with other banks 11,958,104 1287771
Placements - net 17,463,070 15,085,047
Investments - net (excluding capirtal notes with DAB) 15,282,525 18,173,377
Loans and advances to customers - net 2,670,139 3,417,810
Receivable from other financial institutions 266,315 502,618
Other assets 290,527 551,987
47,930,682 44 968,610

Credit risk exposures relating to off-balance sheet items are as follows:
Guarantees 7,158,183 7,946,230
Undrawn loan and overdraft facilities 1,071,813 524,394
Commercial letters of credit 662,409 48,537
8,892,405 8,519,161

The above table represents credit risk exposure to the Bank at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, taking account of
any collateral held or other enhancements attached. For on-balance-sheet assets the exposure set out above is based on net
carrying amounts as reported in the statement of financial position.

The percentage of the maximum credit exposure in balances with other banks, placements, investments and loans and
advances are as follows (in percentage of the total credit exposure):

31 December, 31 December,

2020 2019
Balances with other banks 24.95% 16.10%
Placements - net 36.43% 33.55%
Investments - net (excluding capital notes with DAB) 31.88% 40.41%
Loans and advances to customers - net 5.57% 7.60%

L
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33.2.5

Credit quality of financial assets

The credit qualities of Bank's financial assets have been assessed below by the reference to external credit ratings of counter
parties determined by various international credit rating agencies. The counterparties for which external credit ratings were
not available, and have been assessed by reference to internal credit ratings determined based on their historical information
for any defaults in meeting obligations.

Credit rating 2020 2019
Balances with other banks/FIs Credit rating agency === AFN in "000 =-c--mnenm
Counter parties with external credit ratings:
Standard Chartered Bank Al Moody's - -
Commerzbank Germany Al Moody's 392,873 95,660
Crown agents BBB Fitch 7,422,009 2,893,291
Emirates NBD A3 Moody's 309,953 628,562
AkBank, Turkey B3 Moody's 134,614 89,998
State commercial bank of Turkmenistan Baal Moody's 218,271 961,094
Julius Baer International Aa2 Moody's 1,371,970 56,308
Asaka Bank B3 Moody's 214,845 746,858
Credit Suisse Singapore Al Moody's 22,331 41,294
Bank Centre Credit Caal Moody's 409,237 793,486
Yes Bank, Indiz B2 Moody's 10 6,555
Transkapitalbank B3 Moody's 780,045 910,801
Others 941 13,863
Placements
Bank of Baroda Dubai Baa3 Moody's - 774,600
Commercial Bank International A3 Moody's s 795,019
Commercial Bank of Dubai PSC A- Moody's 231,300 -
Dubai Islamic Bank A3 Moody's 1,244,625 =
CSC Bank SAL Ba3 Moody's - 521,468
Emirates NBD A3 Moody's 3,777,900 2,868,279
National Bank of Fujairah Baal Moody's 1,927,500 -
Julius Baer Aa2 Moody's 2,621,400 1,962,449
United Arab Bank Baal Moody's - 795,019
Crown Agents Bank BBB Fitch 3,846,987 794,650
Citibank A3 Moody's 2,355,783 3,993,303
Noor Bank A3 Moody's - 1,031,651
Ajman Bank BBB+ Fitch 308,400 795,020
National Bank Of Ras Al Khaimah A3 Moody's 1,156,500 774,600

Investments held carries various credit ratng including AAA, Aa2, Aa3, Al, A2, A3, Baal, Baa2, Baa3, Bal, Ba2, Ba3, B1, B2
and B3. These investments are managed by the bank through Emirates NBD, Julius Baer and Credit Suisse under investment
criteria defined by the Bank. The credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk for under expected credit losses
model is based on the Bank’s credit rating grades and year-end stage classification as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 as
disclosed in note 8.5.1 to the financial statements.

Loans and advances to customers- net 2,670,139 3,417,810

The credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk for IFRS 9 stage categories based on the Bank’s credit rating
grades and year-end stage classification as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 are disclosed in note 9.5.1 to the financial
statements.



AFGHANISTAN INTERNATIONAL BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2020

2020 2019
Receivables from financial institutions Note =ceeeeeee- AFN in '000 -----ve=--
Counter parties 266,315 502,618
Other assets
Counter parties 290,527 551,987
33.2.6 Loans and advances - net
Loans and advances are summarized as follows:
Neither past due nor impaired 1,722,505 2,110,969
Past due but not impaired 800,392 1,352,649
Non-performing- Stage 3 990,889 327,714
Gross outstanding 3,513,786 3,791,332
Less: Allowance for impairment
General provision 9.4 (154,200) (154,920)
Provision held for expected credir losses - note 9.5 (689,447 (218,602)
(843,647) (373,522)
2,670,139 3,417,810

(a) Loans and advances neither past due nor impaired

The credit quality of the portfolio of loans and advances that were neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference
to the IFRS 9.

Commercial loans SME loans Consumer loans
Overdraft Term loans Term loans Term loans Total
AFN '000 AFN '000 AFN '000 AFN '000 AFN '000
31 December, 2020
Regular loans 608,597 85,216 088,502 40,190 1,722,505
31 December, 2019
Regular loans 1,712,815 52,449 295,480 50,225 2,110,969

(b) Loans and advances past due but not impaired

31 December, 2020

Past due up to 30 days 512,983 - 287,330 80 800,392
Fair value of collateral 243,926 - 7,581 - 251,507
31 December, 2019

Past due up to 30 days 1,351,691 - - 958 1,352,649
Fair value of collateral 1,161,868 . - - 1,161,868

Upon initial recognition of loans and advances, the fair value of collateral is based on valuation techniques commonly used for
the corresponding assets. In subsequent periods, the fair value is updated by reference to market price or indexes of similar
assets.

(c) Loans and advances individually impaired

The individually impaired loans and advances to customers before taking into consideration the cash flows
from collateral held is AFN 217,535 thousands (31 December, 2019: AFN 327,829 thousands).




AFGHANISTAN INTERNATIONAL BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2020

Commercial loans SME loans Consumer loans

Overdraft Term loans Term loans Term loans Total

AFN '000 AFN '000 AFN '000 AFN '000 AFN '000
31 December, 2020
Non-performing - Stage 3 874,174 56,004 60,058 398 990,633
Fair value of collateral 2,180,529 107,990 240,498 B
31 December, 2019
Non-performing - Stage 3 143,859 102,596 80,896 363 327,714
Fair value of collateral 623,837 212,952 1,090,329 - 1,927,118

(d) Loans and advances restructured / rescheduled

Restructuring activities include extended payment arrangements and deferral of payments. Restructuring policies and practices
are based on indicators or criteria which, in the judgment of management, indicate that payment will most likely continue.
These policies are kept under continuous review. Renegotiated loans that would otherwise be past due or impaired at 31
December 2020 were AFN 236,456 thousands (31 December, 2019: AFN 219,880 thousands).

31 December, 2020 31 December, 2019
Loan
amount at Loan amount at
the time of the time of
rescheduling Atyear-end rescheduling Atyear-end

AFN '000 AFN '000 AFN '000 AFN '000
Commercial loans and advances:
Term loans 71435 34,578 - 219,880
Overdraft 243,756 201,878 247,310

Total 321,491 236,456 247,310 219,880
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AFGHANISTAN INTERNATIONAL BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2020

33.5 Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank is unable to meet its payment obligations associated with its financial liabilities when
they fall due and to replace funds when they are withdrawn. The consequence may be the failure to meet obligations to repay
depositors and fulfill commitments to lend.

(a) Financial instruments measured at fair value using a valuation technique

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The various fair value levels have
been defined as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(Le., as prices) or indirectly (ie., derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or hiability that are not based on observable marker data (unobservable inputs).

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
AFN '000 AFN '000 AFN '000
Investments in bonds - Fair value through OCI
As at 31 December, 2020 9,331,990 -
As at 31 December, 2019 = 7,837,520 -

Valuation technique and key inputs used for investments in bonds were quoted market bid price in active market.
There were no transfers made among various levels of fair value hierarchy during the year.

(b) Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The table below summarizes the carrying amounts and fair values of those financial assets and liabilities which are presented
on the Bank's statement of financial position at value other than fair value.

Carrying Value Fair Value
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2020 2019 2020 2019
AFN '000 AFN '000 AFN '000 AFN '000

Financial assets
Cash and balances with Da Afghanistan Bank 12,508,824 13,859,017 12,508,824 13,859,017
Balances with other banks 11,958,104 7237771 11,958,104 7.237.771
Placements - net 17,463,070 15,085,047 17,463,070 15,085,047
Investments - net 7,734,979 11,078,229 7,734,979 11,078,229
Loans and advances to customers - net 2,670,139 3,417,810 2,670,139 3,417,810
Receivables from financial institutions 266,315 502,618 266,315 502,618
Security deposits and other receivables - net 639,981 551,987 639,981 551,987
Financial liabilities
Customers' deposits 62,211,331 58,843,106 62,211,331 58,843,106
Deposits from bank . 500,000 = 500,000
Other hiabilinies = 261,700 - 261,700

Off-balance sheet financial instruments
Bank's guarantees 7,158,183 7,946,230 7,158,183 7,946,230
Bank's commitments 1,734,222 572,931 1,734,222 572,931
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The carrying values of these financial assets and liabilities approximates their fair values as at the date of statement of financial |

(i) Investments:

These include investment bonds classified as held-to-maturity which are measured at amortised cost. The fair value of these
investments is equal to the carrying amount.

(ii) Loans and advances, other assets and other financial liabilities

Fair value of loans and advances, security deposits and other receivables and all the financial liabilities cannot be calculated
with sufficient reliability due to absence of current and active market for such assets and reliable data regarding market rates
for similar instruments, so its carrying amount 1s its fair value. The provision for loans and advances has been calculated in
accordance with the Bank's policy and regulations issued by DAB.

(iii) Off-balance sheet financial instruments

The fair value of the off-balance sheet financial instruments 1s equal to the carrying amounts.
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33.6 Capital Management

The Bank's objectives when managing capital, which is a broader concept than the 'equity’ on the face of balance
sheets, are:

(1) to comply with the capital requirements set by the DAB;
(ii) to safeguard the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to be self-sustainable; and

(iii) ro maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business.
Capiral adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are monitored regularly by the Bank's management. DAB requires
each bank to maintain its Tier 1 Capital ratio and Regulatory Capital ratio to be at least 6 % and 12 % respectively.

The Bank is maintaining this ratio well above the required level.

The table below summarizes the composition of the regulatory capital and ratio of the Bank:

2020 2019
---------- AFN in '000 ----------
Tier 1 (Core) Capital:
Total equity capital 3,741,695 3,679,164
Liens:
Intangible assets (364,323) (426,328)
Net deferred tax assets (87,543) -
Revaluation reserve on debt instruments at OCI (142,391) (63,989)
Profit for the year (310,129) (608,168)
2,837,308 2,580,679
Tier 2 (Supplementary) Capital:
General reserves as per DAB's regulation, but restricted
to 1.25% of total nisk-weighted exposure 168,224 176,030
Profit for the year 310,129 608,168
Revaluation reserve on bonds (45%) 64,076 28,795
542,429 812,993
Tier 2 (Supplementary) Capital
(restricted 100% of Tier 1 (Core) Capital) 542,429 812,993
3,379,137 3,393,672
Risk-weight categories
0% risk weight:
Cash in Afghani and fully-convertible foreign currencies 3,594,441 3,261,904
Direct claims on DAB 10,698,827 11,339,485
Others 4,511,613 5,348,296
Toral 18,804,881 19,949,685
0% risk-weight total (above total x (%) - -
20% risk weight:
Balances with other banks 18,876,281 22,846,448
Others 943,063 2,641,431
20% risk-weight total (above rotal x 20%) 3,963,869 5,097,576

50% risk weight:
Others 664,147 2,780,447

50% risk-weight total (above total x 50%) 332,074 1,390,223
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2020 2019

---------- AFN in '000 ---=------
100% risk weight:
All other assets 16,691,920 15,743,163
Less: intangible assets (364,323) (426,328)
Less: Deferred tax assets (87,543) .
All other assets - net 16,240,054 15,316,835
100% risk-weight total (above total x 100%) 16,240,054 15,316,835
Credit conversion factor
0% risk weight:
Undrawn loan and overdraft facilities 1,071,813 524,394
Guarantees 482,583 617,410
0% credit conversion factor total (risk-weighted total x 0%) -
0% risk-weight total (above total x 0%) - -
20% risk weight:
Commercial letters of credit 662,409 48,537
Guarantees 6,671,745 7,324,947
20% credit conversion factor total (risk-weighted total x 20%) 132,482 9,707
20% credit conversion factor total (nisk-weighted total x 20%) 1,360,845 1,466,930
100% risk weight:
Guarantees 3,855 3,873
100% credit conversion factor total (rsk-weighted total x 100%0) 3,855 3,873
100% risk-weight total (above total x 100%) 3,855 3,873
Total risk-weighted assets 21,900,697 23,275,437
Tier 1 Capital Ratio
(Tier 1 capital as % of total risk-
weighted assets) 12.96% 11.09%
Regulatory Capital Ratio
(Regulatory capital as % of total risk-weighted assets) 15.43% 14.58%

Islamic banking

The Bank started Islamic banking operation in November 2015 with following Islamic deposit products.

Qardul Hasana Current Account

This account is profit-free account specifically designed to meet the requirements of the Bank’s customers. Account
holders will have easy access to account at any time to meet their personal or business expenses.

Mudarabah Savings Account

This account is designed specifically to meet the requirements of customers who authorize the Bank to invest their cash
deposits. Customers can deposit or withdraw money at any time they wish, and can earn profits on their savings.

Mudarabah Term Investment Deposit
These funds are accepted with different investment periods. The Bank manages and invests the funds aiming at realizing

the best profit for the mutual interest of the parties.

Below are the figures relating to Islamic banking as at 31 December, 2020
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2020 2019
-=---n-m-= AFN in "000 ~-------

ASSETS
Cash and balances with Da Afghanistan Bank 945,854 750,697
Investments in sukuk securities 771,000 542,220
Loans and advances to customers 46,850 43,134
Property and equipment 1,313 1,283
Other assets 8,095 6,581
Total assets 1,773,112 1,343,915
LIABILITIES
Deposit - current 223,103 144,910
Deposit - saving 1,523,139 1,146,234
Deposit - term deposit 25,572 43,855
Other liabilites 18,691 16,870

1,790,506 1,351,869
EQUITY
Share Capital 5,809 5,809
Accumulated losses reserve (23,203) (13,764)
Total equity (17,394) (7,955)
Total liabilities and equity 1,773,112 1,343,914
Total profit income 16,476 20,802
Total profit expense (6,583) (8,476)
Net Profit Income 9,893 12327
Other non profit income 2,855 3,242
Other non profit expense (14,655) (14,750)
Net non profit expense (11,800) (11,507)
Income from dealing in foreign currencies (607) (757)
TOTAL INCOME (2,514) 63
Net provision for expected credit losses (6,926) 1,472
NET PROFIT/ (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (9,439) 1,535
General

35.1 Corresponding figures have been reclassified / re-arranged wherever necessary to facilitate comparison in the
presentation in the current year. However, there are no material reclassification / re-arrangement to report.

35.2 The figures in these financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest in thousands in AFN.
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36 Date of authorization for issue

These financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Supervisors of the Bank on

RY Mar-q02) /

W

Chairman

0
— £ Vﬂ/ m@v

___—Chief Financial Officer

ief Executive Officer




